
 

 

  
PUBLIC NOTICE AND AGENDA OF THE WEST BRANCH CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

SCHEDULED TO CONVENE AT 7:00 P.M. MONDAY APRIL 20, 2020 IN THE CITY 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 110 NORTH POPLAR STREET, WEST BRANCH, IOWA. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin mayor@westbranchiowa.org 

Mayor Pro Tem Colton Miller mcolton@rocketmail.com 

Council Member Jodee Stoolman j.stoolmanwbcc@yahoo.com  

Council Member Nick Goodweiler nickgoodweilerwbcc@gmail.com  

Council Member Tom Dean tdiowa@hotmail.com  

Council Member Jerry Sexton jerrysextonwb@gmail.com  

City Administrator Redmond Jones II rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org 

City Attorney Kevin Olson kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com 

Deputy City Clerk Leslie Brick leslie@westbranchiowa.org 
 

Please note:  Most written communications to or from government officials regarding government 

business are public records available to the public and media upon request.  Your e-mail 

communications may therefore be subject to public disclosure.  Electronic Meeting (Pursuant to 

Iowa Code section 21.8) An electronic meeting is being held because a meeting in person is 

impossible or impractical due to concerns for the health and safety of council members, staff and 

the public presented by COVID-19.  You can watch and/or participate in the meeting at the following 

link https://zoom.us/j/5322527574 or dial in phone number 1-312-626-6799 with Meeting ID 532 

252 7574.  A video of the meeting will also be made available April 8th on the City Website.  For 

your safety and the safety of others please explore all available opportunities to participate by phone 

or computer.  If you are unable to attend or participate by computer or phone, you may come to City 

Hall as an audience of no more than 10 will be allowed to gather.  First come, first to be granted 

access.  In accordance with Social Distancing Order by the Governor of the State of Iowa. 
 

 

AGENDA 

A. Call to Order 

 

B. Opening Ceremonies  
1. Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Welcome 

 

C. Roll Call 

 

D. Guest Speaker, Presentations and Proclamations  
1. Matt Goodale, West Branch Director of Public Works, Presentation on the Creek 

Maintenance Program 2019. 
 

E. Public Comment 
Anyone wishing to address the City Council may come forward when invited; please state your name and 

address for the record. Public comments are typically limited to three minutes, and written comments may be 

submitted to the Deputy City Clerk.  

mailto:mayor@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:mcolton@rocketmail.com
mailto:rjonesii@westbranchiowa.org
mailto:kevinolsonlaw@gmail.com
mailto:leslie@westbranchiowa.org
https://zoom.us/j/5322527574


 
"Turning Vision into Reality is our Business" 

 

F. Approve Agenda / Consent Agenda / Move to Action 
Routine items and items not anticipated to be controversial are placed on the Consent Agenda to expedite 

the meeting.  If a Council member, staff member or member of the Public wishes to discuss any item on the 

Consent Agenda, they can request the item be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion.   
 

1. Motion to Approve Meeting Minutes for City Council Meeting April 6, 2020.  
2. Motion to Approve Pay Estimate Number 10 in the Amount of $4,866.49 for the 

College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 
 
3. Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

 
G. Public Hearing / Non-Consent Agenda   

1. Third (Final) Reading of Ordinance 775 Adding Chapter 78 of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa; Entitled, “Golf Carts”.    

2. Second Reading of Ordinance 774 Amending Chapters 45 entitled “Alcohol 
Consumption and Intoxication”; and Chapter 47 entitled “Municipal Park Policies 
And Regulations”.  

3. Resolution 1890 – Amending Resolutions 1880 and 1724 An Agreement with 
Barnhart’s Custom Service LLC for Site Preparation to Include Additional Invoicing 
Not To Exceed $54,000.00 For Related Services.    

4. Resolution 1888 – A Resolution Establishing a New Capital Fund To Pay For Capital 
Expenses Related to the I-80 Widening Project. 

 
5. Discussion Item:  Consider Discontinuing Our “2019-2020 Goal Setting Exercise” 

Identified the “High” Priority Goal to Install Asphalt Shoulder on West Main Street 
(Due to the School District Construction Plans).  

6. Resolution 1891 – Approving the Site Plan for Cedar Edge, 3 Ember Lane, West 
Branch, Iowa.   

7. Resolution 1893 – Resolution approving that certain Easement Agreement with the 
Fobian Brothers in connection with the College Street Bridge Project. 

 
8. Resolution 1892 – A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Plat of Parkside Hills, West 

Branch, Iowa. 
 

H. Reports  
1. City Administrator’s Report 
2. City Attorney Report 
3. City Staff Hearsays 

 

I. Comments from Mayor and Council Members 

 

J. Adjournment Regular Meeting 
 

 



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Creek Maintenance Presentation 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Matt Goodale, Public Works Director 

DATE:  April 16, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  
 
Creek cleanup has been a goal of the City Councils and is completed yearly by the Public Works 

Department. We do not have enough time or man power to do every area of every creek yearly so a 

portion of creek is cleaned every year. The majority of this work happening in the winter when there 

is sufficient frost to keep from damaging trails and turf surfaces. This past winter Public Works 

focused on a small portion of the creek near Cubby Park as well as north and south of the College 

Street Bridge for 500 feet either direction. Typically not all of the trees are removed in the cleanup 

process. Certain types of trees that are located at the top edge or back from the bank are left while 

trees growing at the water’s edge, dead/dying trees, invasive plants or trees located in a location that 

is seen as negative are removed to allow for better water flow and to give the remaining trees room 

to grow appropriately. We did not have as much time as we would have liked this year due to the 

warmer winter but managed to clear out a good amount of trees and brush.  

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Discussion / Feedback 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        
 

Presentation 1 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

(The following is a synopsis of the minutes of the West Branch City Council meeting. A video recording is available for inspection 

on the City of West Branch Website at www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos. The minutes are not approved until 

the next regularly scheduled City Council meeting.)  
 

West Branch, Iowa                                               City Council                                                 April 6, 2020  

Council Chambers                      Regular Meeting                                             7:00 p.m.                                                                                       
 
An Electronic Meeting (pursuant to Iowa Code Section 21.8) of the City Council of the City of West Branch, Cedar 

County, IA was held on Monday, April 6, 2020 at 7:00 p.m. because a meeting in person was impossible or 

impractical due to concerns for the health and safety of Council Members, Staff and the Public presented by 

COVID-19.   
 
Until further notice, all of our Council Meetings will be held electronically only.  Persons may still attend, observe 

and participate in the meeting at the Council Chambers, City Office, 110 N. Poplar St, West Branch, Iowa.  Social 

distancing practices shall be observed for any persons attending the meeting in person at City Hall. 
 
Mayor Roger Laughlin called the West Branch City Council meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.   

Roll call (via Zoom platform): Council members: Colton Miller, Jodee Stoolman, Nick Goodweiler, Jerry Sexton and 

Tom Dean were present.   City Staff:  Deputy Clerk Leslie Brick, City Attorney Kevin Olson, City Engineer Dave 

Schechinger, Library/IT Director Nick Shimmin and Park & Recreation Director Melissa Russell.   

Laughlin welcomed the (in-person) audience and the following City staff:  City Administrator Redmond Jones, 

Finance Officer Gordon Edgar, Police Chief Mike Horihan, and Public Works Director Matt Goodale 
 
PRESENTATIONS - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT - NONE 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

Motion to approve minutes for City Council Meeting March 16, 2020. 

Motion to approve minutes for City Council Meeting March 30, 2020. 

Resolution 1884 – Approving a temporary water supply agreement with Crestview Specialty Care. 

Motion to approve Pay Estimate # 9 in the amount of $18,703.02 for the College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 
EXPENDITURES     4/6/2020  
    
ACTION SEWER & SEPTIC SERVICE   SEWER CLEANING     271.25  
AE OUTDOOR POWER     EQUIPMENT REPAIR    669.39  
ALTORFER INC     VEHICLE REPAIR     588.35  
AMERICAN WATER WORKS ASSOCIATION   DUES GOODALE 2-1-20 TO 1-31-21   90.00  
BALDRIDGE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, LLC  SEWAGE LAGOON ENZYMES    5,000.00  
BROWN'S WEST BRANCH    VEHICLE REPAIR     48.99  
CAJ ENTERPRISES INC     CAJ ENTERPRISES INC     813.91  
CHAUNCEY BUTLER POST 514    FLAGS      107.00  
CITY TRACTOR CO     EQUIPMENT REPAIR     7.17  
CULLIGAN WATER TECHNOLOGIE    WATER SOFTENER SERVICE    23.20  
FINDAWAY WORLD LLC    SUPPLIES      23.93  
GALLS, LLC      SUPPLIES      434.07  
HAWKINS INC     CHEMICALS-AZONE     471.50  
HD SUPPLY CONST AND INDUST    SUPPLIES      878.76  
HI-LINE ELECTRIC COMPANY INC    SUPPLIES      250.00  
HORIHAN, MIKE     SUPPLIES      19.99  
IOWA ONE CALL     LOCATION NOTIFICATION SERVICE   19.80  
JAB INK GRAFIX & DESIGNS    VEHICLE MAINTENANCE    266.00  
JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL    EQ REPAIR, SUPPLIES     111.83  
KELTEK INC     EQUIPMENT & INSTALLATION    15,917.15  
KOCH OFFICE GROUP     COPIER MAINTENANCE    428.97  
LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    LIBERTY COMMUNICATIONS    1,422.34  
LINDER TIRE SERVICE INC    VEHICLE REPAIR     848.50  
LYNCH'S EXCAVATING INC    REPAIR WATER MAIN - GREENVIEW   1,642.50  

(Minutes) 

 Consent Item 1 

http://www.westbranchiowa.org/government/council-videos


 

 

LYNCH'S PLUMBING INC    SEWER REPAIR     165.00  
MATT PARROTT/STOREY KENWORTHY   LASER UTILITY BILLS     742.50  
MENARDS      SUPPLIES      2,768.37  
OASIS ELECTRIC LLC     LED LIGHT INSTALLATION    1,696.00  
OLSON, KEVIN D     LEGAL SERVICES - APRIL, 2020    1,500.00  
PITNEY BOWES INC     POSTAGE METER RENTAL    180.00  
PLUNKETT'S PEST CONTROL INC    PEST CONTROL PUBLIC SAFETY    75.00  
QUILL CORP     SUPPLIES      752.41  
SAWYER, ALEX     BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    1,224.49  
SCOTT M THOMA     BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    1,132.59  
SHRED-IT USA     DOCUMENT DESTRUCTION    57.44  
SINCLAIR TRACTOR     VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES   149.90  
STATE INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS    CHEMICALS     244.00  
SUMMIT COMPANIES     FIRE EXTINGUISHER INSPECTION    1,008.00  
USA BLUE BOOK     SUPPLIES      1,572.95  
WEST BRANCH FORD     REPAIR PARTS     6.64  
WEST BRANCH TIMES     SUBSCRIPTION EXP 05-30-2021    30.00  
    
TOTAL            43,659.89  
    
PAYROLL      4/3/2020      44,585.51  
    
PAID BETWEEN MEETINGS    
    
CATHERINE STEEN     MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    15.36  
FRONTLINE PLUS FIRE & RESCUE    OUTDOOR SIREN MAINTENANCE    1,160.00  
JAB INK GRAFIX & DESIGNS    VEHICLE SIGNAGE     790.00  
LYNCH'S PLUMBING     BUILDING MAINTENANCE    794.00  
RACOM CORPORATION    RADIO REPAIR     657.50  
TARALYNNE WERTHMANN    UTILITIY REFUND     100.00  
BARNHART'S CUSTOM SERVICES LLC   CLEAN UP FORMER CROELL SITE    39,298.88  
BECCA JANSSEN     PARK & REC REFUND     100.00  
CEDAR COUNTY COOP    VEHICLE FUEL     710.61  
DEWEYS JACK & JILL     SUPPLIES      45.23  
JULIA HIME     VIDEOGRAPHY SERVICE    100.00  
REBECCA KNOCHE     BUILDING INCENTIVE PAYMENT    841.79  
MACQUEEN EQUIPMENT    VEHICLE REPAIR     234.21  
MEDIACOM     CABLE SERVICE     41.90  
PITNEY BOWES PURCHASE POWER   REPLENISH POSTAGE MACHINE    500.00  
PSC DISTRIBUTION     SUPPLIES      10.56  
THE HOME DEPOT     MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES    44.13  
TORI HAMILTION     PARK & REC REFUND     25.00  
US BANK CORPORATE CARD    TRAINING, LODGING & SUPPLIES    1,326.90  
VERIZON WIRELESS     WIRELESS SERVICE     801.53  
WEST BRANCH TIMES     LEGAL PUBLICATIONS & HELP WANTED   676.50  
    
TOTAL            48,274.10  
    
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES          136,519.50  
    
FUND TOTALS    
001   GENERAL FUND     53,708.81  
022   CIVIC CENTER     240.36  
031   LIBRARY     5,601.36  
110   ROAD USE TAX     9,227.06  
112   TRUST AND AGENCY   4,940.16  
308   PARK IMP - PEDERSEN VALLEY    1,500.56  
312   DOWNTOWN EAST REDEVLOPMENT  39,298.88  
600   WATER FUND     10,389.34  
610   SEWER FUND     11,612.97  
    
GRAND TOTAL     136,519.50TOTAL     161,803.85 
 
Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler approve agenda/consent agenda items.  AYES:  Miller, 

Goodweiler, Dean, Stoolman, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.   Motion carried.   



 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING / NON-CONSENT AGENDA  

 
 

 
 

Motion by Miller, second by Sexton to approve the 3rd reading of Ordinance 773.  AYES:   Miller, Sexton, 

Stoolman, Dean, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 

Second Reading of Ordinance 775 Adding Chapter 78 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa; 

Entitled, “Golf Carts”. / Move to action.  

Motion by Dean, second by Goodweiler to approve the 2nd reading of Ordinance 775.  AYES:  Dean, 

Goodweiler, Stoolman, Miller, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 
Resolution 1887 – Allowing the Implementation of a Trap / Neuter and Release Feral Cats Pilot Program within the 

City Limits. / Move to action. 

Dr. Alan Beyer, Animal Control Commission said the program was targeted to a feral cat colony that consists of 

approximately six cats and the commission budget would pay for neutering.  Laughlin felt the program was a good 

idea.  Sexton asked how long the program would continue if the problem continued.  Beyer stated that the program 

would end or need to be evaluated after this colony was taken care of. 

Motion by Miller, second by Stoolman to approve Resolution 1887.  AYES:  Miller, Stoolman, Sexton, Dean, 

Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 

Resolution 1885 – Approving the West Branch High School Expansion Project Site Plan. / Move to action. 

Laughlin said that staff had several meetings with the school district last month to review the proposed site plan.  

Schechinger said that it was determined during the review process that a traffic study would be required for adding a 

second driveway access.  Schechinger said that a traffic study has now been completed and the study indicates that 

turn lanes will be required in order to meet IDOT’s safety requirements.  Laughlin said staff decided that the issue of 

turn lanes and who would pay for them did not need to hold up the project or the school’s timeline to start 



 

 

construction this spring.  Laughlin said the Planning & Zoning Commission had reviewed and approved the site plan 

for “on-site improvements only” and would approve the turn lane issue as a separate matter later.  Miller reminded the 

Council members who were not on the Council when a similar concept was presented a few years ago, that the issue 

of street improvements needed in this area would be at the sole expense of The Meadows (developer of Dawson 

Drive) and the school district.  When the first school bond issued failed, the project was put on hold.  The Meadows 

later completed their street and the issue was dropped.  Miller said the City isn’t creating the problem and shouldn’t 

be responsible for paying for the street improvements.  Sexton said he didn’t feel that the developer was creating the 

traffic issue and therefore should not have to chip in either.  Goodweiler stated his opinion that the school should pay 

for at least fifty percent of the costs.  Laughlin said he was hopeful that the three parties could come to some sort of an 

agreement for financing the street improvements.  The Council agreed to approve the site plan based on “on-site 

improvements only”, but added that the turn lane and street improvements needed further discussion. 

Motion by Sexton, second by Goodweiler to approve Resolution 1885.  AYES:  Sexton, Goodweiler, Stoolman, 

Miller, Dean.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 
Resolution 1883 – Approving either Contract (A) with Johnson County Refuse Inc., or Contract (B) with Allied 

Waste Services, LLC “Doing Business As” Republic Services, for Residential Solid Waste and Recycling Collection 

Services. / Move to action. 

Laughlin said he verified that breaking the 28E Agreement with the Cedar County Transfer Station would result in 

residents and businesses not being allowed to take their refuse there and that the City would still be responsible for the 

annual fees until the original expiration of the agreement which is in 2028.  Laughlin mentioned this fact because 

Republic Services has its own landfill and it was thought that the city would save money if they were selected.  Dean 

made a motion to award a five year contract to Johnson County Refuse.  There were no additional council comments. 

Motion by Dean, second by Miller to approve Resolution 1883 awarding the contract to Johnson County 

Refuse.  AYES:  Dean, Miller, Sexton, Stoolman, Goodweiler.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 
 

Resolution 1886 – Approving Change Order #7 in the amount of $17,554.02 for the College Street Bridge 

Replacement Project. / Move to action. 

Schechinger said the change order includes work required to replace a driveway approach near West Branch Roofing 

due to coordination issues between the contractor and the engineer and to correct any other quantity discrepancies in 

order to close out the project.   

Motion by Stoolman, second by Dean to approve Resolution 1886.  AYES:  Stoolman, Dean, Miller, 

Goodweiler, Sexton.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

  
Discussion: COVID-19 City Protocols.  

Jones reported on the steps city staff has taken to help prevent the spread of COVID-19 which include closing the City 

Office to the public while maintaining daily operations and office staff reporting to work daily.  Jones said staff is also 

preparing to work from home should the need arise.  Public Works started working as two person teams starting 

March 30th.  Two of the four full-time staff members will report to work for two weeks, while two full-time staff 

members have been sent home for those two weeks.  Public Works will alternate two weeks on, two weeks off so as to 

limit their potential exposure to each other.  Part-time help has also been suspended during this time.  Jones said the 

library closed on March 16th and remains closed, however staff is reporting to work.  Library staff is working on 

future programing and other projects.  Parks & Rec activities have either been canceled or postponed and will 

continue to be monitored for any additional closures required by the Governor.  The Police department is reporting to 

work as scheduled but taking all the necessary safety precautions. 

  
First Reading of Ordinance 774 - Amending Chapters 45 entitled “Alcohol Consumption and Intoxication”; and 

Chapter 47 entitled “Municipal Park Policies and Regulations”. /Move to action. 

Olson said he had sent some revised language for the ordinance for staff to review but it was determined it would not 

be easy to enforce.  Olson summarized that the staff agreed to allowing alcohol consumption at all city parks but 

requiring a special permit for doing so.  Olson said he would revise the ordinance before the second reading.   



 

 

Motion by Miller, second by Goodweiler to approve the 1st reading of Ordinance 774.  AYES:   Miller, 

Goodweiler, Stoolman, Sexton, Dean.  NAYS:  None.  Motion carried. 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

Jones said a meeting was scheduled later this week with Baldridge Environmental for an update.  Jones said after 

many discussions regarding fundraising for a splash pad, a Go-Fund-Me account set up late last fall would be used to 

collect donations.  Jones said that Dollar General has decided against the proposed site on West Main Street citing 

storm water issues but that they are still actively looking to come to West Branch. 

 

 

 

CITY ATTORNEY REPORT 

Olson reminded the Council and Administrator that he had sent the Croell site agreement to them for comments and to 

reply as soon as possible. 

 

STAFF REPORTS  

None.   

 

COMMENTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Laughlin thanked Russell for continuing to find ways to entertain the youth of the community with the recent Easter 

Bunny visits and dropping off baskets.   

Sexton asked for cost projections, designs and maintenance costs for the proposed splash pad. 

Miller commented on the trash blown from the construction site on N. Downey St. to the neighbor on the east side of 

the street.  Jones mentioned that staff was made aware of the situation and had it handled. 

Stoolman asked if the new lights on the College Street Bridge could be brighter, noting they were being reported as 

too dim. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn the meeting by Dean, second by Goodweiler.  Motion carried on a voice vote.  City Council 

meeting adjourned at 8:59 p.m.  

 

       

                           _________________________________________  

                                           Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: ______________________________________________ 

                   Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 

 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 

 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve Pay Estimate Number #10 in the Amount of $4,866.49 for the 

College Street Bridge Replacement Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / Eric Gould, V&K 

DATE:  April 15, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

This pay estimate in the amount of $4866.49 which covers work completed under the contract 

between the City of West Branch and Taylor Construction, Inc. for the College Street Bridge 

Replacement project.  

 

Pay Estimates to date on the College Street Bridge Replacement Project:  

 Pay estimate 1 - $361,163.95  

 Pay estimate 2 - $248,327.73  

 Pay estimate 3 - $360,690.11  

 Pay estimate 4 - $208,192.56  

 Pay estimate 5 - $154,055.39  

 Pay estimate 6 - $214,380.09 

 Pay estimate 7 - $105,583.06 

 Pay estimate 8 - $60,598.60 

 Pay estimate 9 - $18,703.02 

 Pay estimate 10 - $4,866.49 

 

Note: Pay Estimates by law are approved when a public bid is accepted and awarded. These items 

do not require additional passage by ordinance. On July 8th of 2019 the City Council voted to review 

change orders on the consent agenda in the form of a motion for reasons of transparency. This 

approach also cuts staff preparation time. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Motion – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 Consent Item 2 



Unit
41 SY
42 SY
43 Ton
44 SY
45 Ea.
46 SY
47 SY
48 SY
49 SF
50 SY
51 SY
52 SY
53 SY
54 Ea.
55 LF
56 LF
57 Ea.
58 LF
59 Ea.
60 Ea.
61 Ea.
62 LS
63 LS
64 LS
65 Ea.
66 LF
67 LF
68 LF
69 LF
70 Ea.
71 Ea.
72 Ea.
73 Ea.
74 Ea.
75 Ea.
76 Ea.
77 Ea.
78 Ea.
79 Ea.
80 Ea.
81 Ea.
82 Ea.
83 Ea.
84 Ea.
85 Acre
86 Acre
87 Acre
88

Mgal
89 Ea.
90 LF
91

LF
92

LF
93 LF
94 Ea.
95 Ea.

Division I Price: 1,094,972.80$    1,078,896.86$   

 $         1,000.00 
2602-0010020 Mobilizations, Emergency Erosion Contro 1 1,000.00$       $          1,000.00  $                    -   
2602-0010010 Mobilizations, Erosion Control 1 500.00$          $             500.00 2

 $         1,358.00 
2602-0000500 Open-Throat Curb Intake Sediment Filter 60 20.00$            $          1,200.00 10  $            200.00 

2602-0000309 Perimeter and Slope Sediment Control 
Device, 9 In. Dia. 80 7.00$              $             560.00 194

 $                    -   
2602-0000101 Maintenance of Silt Fence or Silt Fence 

for Ditch Check 715 0.50$              $             357.50  $                    -   

2602-0000020 Silt Fence 715 2.00$              $          1,430.00 

 $                    -   
2601-2643300 Mobilization for Watering 4 350.00$          $          1,400.00  $                    -   

2601-2643110 Watering for Sod, Special Ditch 
Control, or Slope Protection 0.07 60.00$            $                 4.20 

 $         1,250.00 
2601-2642120 Stabil Crop-Seeding & Fertilizing (Urban) 0.50 1,500.00$       $             750.00 0.5  $            750.00 
2601-2636044 Seeding and Fertilizing (Urban) 0.50 2,500.00$       $          1,250.00 0.5

 $                    -   
2601-2634100 Mulching 0.50 2,500.00$       $          1,250.00 0.5  $         1,250.00 
2599-9999005 Removal of Hydrant Assembly 800.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0210201 Fire Hydrant Assembly, WM-201 5,250.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0207012 Valve, Gate, DIP, 12 In. 2,800.00$       $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0207008 Valve, Gate, DIP, 8 In. 1,650.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0207006 Valve, Gate, DIP, 6 In. 1,250.00$       $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0204110 Water Service Stub, Copper, 1 In. 1,725.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 8 In. X 8 In. 850.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 8 In. X 6 In. 750.00$          $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 6 In. X 4 In. 585.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 12 In. X 8 In. 1,250.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Reducer, 8 In. X 6 375.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Cross, 12 In. X 8 In 1,375.00$       $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 45° Bend, 8 In. 625.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 22.5° Bend, 8 In. 725.00$          $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 11.25° Bend, 8 In 600.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0112012 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12 In. 225.00$          $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0112008 Water Main, Trenched,DIP, 8 In. 65.00$            $                     -   

 $                    -   
2554-0112006 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 6 In. 92.50$            $                     -    $                    -   
2554-0112004 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 4 In. 150.00$          $                     -   

 $     123,750.00 
2549-0006320 Urethane Chimney Seal 4 725.00$          $          2,900.00 4  $         2,900.00 
2533-4980005 Mobilization 0.75 165,000.00$   $      123,750.00 0.75

 $       15,000.00 
2528-8445110 Traffic Control 0.50 4,350.00$       $          2,175.00 0.5  $         2,175.00 
2526-8285000 Construction Survey 0.75 20,000.00$     $        15,000.00 0.75

 $            600.00 
2524-6765110 Removal of Type A Sign 4 25.00$            $             100.00 4  $            100.00 
2524-6765010 Remove and Reinstall Sign as per plan 4 150.00$          $             600.00 4

 $         9,000.00 
2523-0000310 Handholes and Junction Boxes 3 1,400.00$       $          4,200.00 3  $         4,200.00 
2523-0000200 Electrical Circuits 600 15.00$            $          9,000.00 600

 $         9,175.60 
2523-0000100 Lighting Poles 2 3,900.00$       $          7,800.00 2  $         7,800.00 
2519-4200020 Remvl & Reinstall of Fence, Chain Link 140 65.54$            $          9,175.60 140

 $            250.00 
2519-3300600 Fence, Safety 1,040 5.00$              $          5,200.00 425  $         2,125.00 
2518-6910000 Safety Closure 2 125.00$          $             250.00 2

 $       27,514.55 
2515-6745600 Removal of Paved Driveway 64 12.50$            $             800.00 108  $         1,350.00 
2515-2475095 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 9.5 In. 362 63.50$            $        22,987.00 433.3

 $         5,691.55 
2515-2475008 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 8 In. 142 52.50$            $          7,455.00 125.3  $         6,578.25 
2515-2475006 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 134 44.50$            $          5,963.00 127.9

 $         5,336.00 
2511-7528101 Detectable Warnings 52 30.00$            $          1,560.00 52  $         1,560.00 
2511-7526006 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 229 46.00$            $        10,534.00 116

 $         2,002.00 
2511-7526004 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 4 In. 191 36.75$            $          7,019.25 135  $         4,961.25 
2511-6745900 Removal of Sidewalk 308 6.50$              $          2,002.00 308

 $         1,728.00 
2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses 8 425.00$          $          3,400.00 6  $         2,550.00 
2510-6745850 Removal of Pavement 144 12.00$            $          1,728.00 144

 $         1,320.00 
2507-6800061 Revetment, Class E 841 42.25$            $        35,532.25 813.41  $       34,366.57 
2507-3250005 Engineering Fabric 660 2.00$              $          1,320.00 660

Value 
Completed

2507-2638650 Bridge Wing Armoring - Erosion Stone 50 50.00$            $          2,500.00 50  $         2,500.00 
Item Code Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

Quantity 
Completed

V&K Job No. 368266 2 of 7



Unit
1 Unit
2 CY
3 CY
4 CY
5 CY
6 CY
7 CY
8 Ea.
9 SY

10 SY
11

SY
12 Ton
13 LS
14 LS
15 CY
16 CY
17 CY
18 LB
19 LB
20 LF
21

LF
22

LF
23 Ea.
24 Ea.
25 Ea.
26 Ea.
27 Ea.
28 Ea.
29 Ea.
30 Ea.
31 Ea.
32 Ea.
33 LF
34 LF
35 Ea.
36

LF
37

LF
38

LF
39

LF
40

LF
41 SY
42 SY
43 Ton
44 SY
45 Ea.
46 SY
47 SY
48 SY  $         5,382.00 2511-7526006 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 185 46.00$            $          8,510.00 117

 $         1,527.50 
2511-7526004 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 4 In. 116 36.75$            $          4,263.00 432  $       15,876.00 
2511-6745900 Removal of Sidewalk 235 6.50$              $          1,527.50 235

 $         1,008.00 
2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses 2 425.00$          $             850.00 2  $            850.00 
2510-6745850 Removal of Pavement 73 12.00$            $             876.00 84

 $                    -   
2507-6800061 Revetment, Class E 42.25$            $                     -    $                    -   
2507-3250005 Engineering Fabric 2.00$              $                     -   

 $         4,460.00 
2507-2638650 Bridge Wing Armoring - Erosion Stone 50.00$            $                     -    $                    -   

2503-0200036 Remove Storm Sewer Pipe Less Than or 
Equal to 36 In. 223 20.00$            $          4,460.00 223

 $       15,630.00 
2503-0114224 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 

RCP, 2000D (Class III), 24 In. 185 72.50$            $        13,412.50 178.5  $       12,941.25 

2503-0114218 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 18 In. 170 60.00$            $        10,200.00 260.5

 $         1,158.25 

2503-0114215 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 15 In. 227 60.00$            $        13,620.00 259  $       15,540.00 

2503-0114212 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 12 In. 50 56.50$            $          2,825.00 20.5

 $         5,235.00 
2502-8221303 Subdrain Outlet, DR-303 4 75.00$            $             300.00 7  $            525.00 
2502-8212036 Subdrain, Longitudinal, (Shoulder) 6 In. 349 15.00$            $          5,235.00 349

 $                    -   
2501-0201042 Piles, Steel, HP 10 X 42 45.00$            $                     -    $                    -   
2435-0600010 Manhole Adjustment, Minor 650.00$          $                     -   

 $         1,500.00 
2435-0251300 Intake, SW-513 1 2,750.00$       $          2,750.00 1  $         2,750.00 
2435-0251224 Intake, SW-512, 24 In. 1 1,500.00$       $          1,500.00 1

 $                    -   
2435-0250400 Intake, SW-504 2 5,850.00$       $        11,700.00 2  $       11,700.00 
2435-0250300 Intake, SW-503 5,000.00$       $                     -   

 $                    -   
2435-0250100 Intake, SW-501 4 2,500.00$       $        10,000.00 3  $         7,500.00 
2435-0140148 Manhole, St Sewer, SW-401, 48 In. 3,850.00$       $                     -   

 $         1,450.00 
2435-0130348 Manhole, San Sewer, SW-303, 48 In. 1 7,250.00$       $          7,250.00 1  $         7,250.00 
2416-0100024 Aprons, Concrete, 24 In. Dia. 1 1,450.00$       $          1,450.00 1

 $                    -   

2416-0100015 Aprons, Concrete, 15 In. Dia. 1 1,200.00$       $          1,200.00 1  $         1,200.00 

2414-6445100 Structural Steel Pedestrian Hand 
Railing, 4'-6 Height 225.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2414-6445100 Structural Steel Pedestrian Hand 

Railing, 10 In. Height 130.00$          $                     -    $                    -   

2414-6424119 Concrete Barrier Railing, Aesthetic 215.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2404-7775005 Reinforcing Steel, Epoxy Coated 1.10$              $                     -    $                    -   
2404-7775000 Reinforcing Steel 1.05$              $                     -   

 $                    -   
2403-0100010 Structural Concrete (Bridge) 600.00$          $                     -    $                    -   
2402-2721000 Excavation, Class 21 150.00$          $                     -   

 $                    -   
2402-2720000 Excavation, Class 20 50.00$            $                     -    $                    -   
2401-6745650 Removal of Existing Structures 800.00$          $                     -   

 $              94.00 
2401-6745625 Removal of Existing Bridge 15,000.00$     $                     -    $                    -   
2315-8275025 Surfacing, Driveway, Cl A Crushed Stone 4 23.50$            $               94.00 4

 $                    -   
2301-1033070 Standard or Slip Form PCC Pvm't, Cl C, 

Cl 3 Durability, 7" 1,624 38.50$            $        62,524.00 1650
 $       63,525.00 

2301-0685550 Bridge Approach Pvm't, as per plan 80.00$            $                     -   

 $         3,100.00 
2214-5145150 Pavement Scarification 1,246 7.00$              $          8,722.00 1246  $         8,722.00 
2213-7100400 Relocation of Mail Boxes 2 620.00$          $          1,240.00 5

 $         9,234.00 
2115-0100000 Modified Subbase 345 32.00$            $        11,040.00 440  $       14,080.00 
2105-8425005 Topsoil, Furnish and Spread 50 38.00$            $          1,900.00 243

 $         2,796.00 
2104-2710020 Excavation, Cl 10, Channel 11.00$            $                     -    $                    -   
2102-2713090 Excavation, Cl 13, Waste 233 12.00$            $          2,796.00 233

 $            735.00 
2102-2710090 Excavation, Cl 10, Waste 1,170 7.25$              $          8,482.50 1170  $         8,482.50 
2102-2710070 Excavation, Cl 10, Roadway & Borrow 70 10.50$            $             735.00 70

Quantity 
Completed

Value 
Completed

2101-0850002 Clearing and Grubbing 10.00$            $                     -    $                    -   

BID ITEMS - DIVISION II

Item Code Description
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

V&K Job No. 368266 3 of 7



Unit
49 SF
50 SY
51 SY
52 SY
53 SY
54 Ea.
55 LF
56 LF
57 Ea.
58 LF
59 Ea.
60 Ea.
61 Ea.
62 LS
63 LS
64 LS
65 Ea.
66 LF
67 LF
68 LF
69 LF
70 Ea.
71 Ea.
72 Ea.
73 Ea.
74 Ea.
75 Ea.
76 Ea.
77 Ea.
78 Ea.
79 Ea.
80 Ea.
81 Ea.
82 Ea.
83 Ea.
84 Ea.
85 Acre
86 Acre
87 Acre
88

Mgal
89 Ea.
90 LF
91

LF
92

LF
93 LF
94 Ea.
95 Ea.  $                    -   

Division II Price: 426,527.00$    455,950.25$   

2602-0010020 Mobilizations, Emergency Erosion Contr 1 1,000.00$       $          1,000.00 

 $            600.00 
2602-0010010 Mobilizations, Erosion Control 1 500.00$          $             500.00 1  $            500.00 
2602-0000500 Open-Throat Curb Intake Sediment Filter 10 20.00$            $             200.00 30

 $                    -   

2602-0000309 Perimeter and Slope Sediment Control 
Device, 9 In. Dia. 7.00$              $                     -    $                    -   

2602-0000101 Maintenance of Silt Fence or Silt Fence 
for Ditch Check 165 0.50$              $               82.50 

 $                    -   
2602-0000020 Silt Fence 165 2.00$              $             330.00  $                    -   
2601-2643300 Mobilization for Watering 4 350.00$          $          1,400.00 

 $            750.00 
2601-2643110 Watering for Sod, Special Ditch 

Control, or Slope Protection 0.05 60.00$            $                 3.00  $                    -   

2601-2642120 Stabil Crop-Seeding & Fertilizing (Urban 0.50 1,500.00$       $             750.00 0.5

 $         1,250.00 
2601-2636044 Seeding and Fertilizing (Urban) 0.50 2,500.00$       $          1,250.00 0.5  $         1,250.00 
2601-2634100 Mulching 0.50 2,500.00$       $          1,250.00 0.5

 $       15,750.00 
2599-9999005 Removal of Hydrant Assembly 3 800.00$          $          2,400.00 3  $         2,400.00 
2554-0210201 Fire Hydrant Assembly, WM-201 3 5,250.00$       $        15,750.00 3

 $       13,200.00 
2554-0207012 Valve, Gate, DIP, 12 In. 1 2,800.00$       $          2,800.00 1  $         2,800.00 
2554-0207008 Valve, Gate, DIP, 8 In. 8 1,650.00$       $        13,200.00 8

 $       17,250.00 
2554-0207006 Valve, Gate, DIP, 6 In. 2 1,250.00$       $          2,500.00 2  $         2,500.00 
2554-0204110 Water Service Stub, Copper, 1 In. 10 1,725.00$       $        17,250.00 10

 $            750.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 8 In. X 8 In. 1 850.00$          $             850.00 1  $            850.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 8 In. X 6 In. 1 750.00$          $             750.00 1

 $         2,500.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 6 In. X 4 In. 1 585.00$          $             585.00 1  $            585.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Tee, 12 In. X 8 In. 2 1,250.00$       $          2,500.00 2

 $         1,375.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Reducer, 8 In. X 6 2 375.00$          $             750.00 2  $            750.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, Cross, 12 In. X 8 In 1 1,375.00$       $          1,375.00 1

 $         5,800.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 45° Bend, 8 In. 1 625.00$          $             625.00 2  $         1,250.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 22.5° Bend, 8 In. 2 725.00$          $          1,450.00 8

 $         1,125.00 
2554-0202200 Fittings By Count, DI, 11.25° Bend, 8 In 3 600.00$          $          1,800.00 3  $         1,800.00 
2554-0112012 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12 In. 5 225.00$          $          1,125.00 5

 $         2,497.50 
2554-0112008 Water Main, Trenched,DIP, 8 In. 1,395 65.00$            $        90,675.00 1395  $       90,675.00 
2554-0112006 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 6 In. 30 92.50$            $          2,775.00 27

 $            725.00 
2554-0112004 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 4 In. 5 150.00$          $             750.00 2  $            300.00 
2549-0006320 Urethane Chimney Seal 1 725.00$          $             725.00 1

 $         2,175.00 
2533-4980005 Mobilization 0.25 165,000.00$   $        41,250.00 0.25  $       41,250.00 
2528-8445110 Traffic Control 0.50 4,350.00$       $          2,175.00 0.5

 $              50.00 
2526-8285000 Construction Survey 0.25 20,000.00$     $          5,000.00 0.25  $         5,000.00 
2524-6765110 Removal of Type A Sign 2 25.00$            $               50.00 2

 $                    -   
2524-6765010 Remove and Reinstall Sign as per plan 1 150.00$          $             150.00 1  $            150.00 
2523-0000310 Handholes and Junction Boxes 1,400.00$       $                     -   

 $                    -   
2523-0000200 Electrical Circuits 15.00$            $                     -    $                    -   
2523-0000100 Lighting Poles 3,900.00$       $                     -   

 $         2,300.00 
2519-4200020 Remvl & Reinstall of Fence, Chain Link 65.54$            $                     -    $                    -   
2519-3300600 Fence, Safety 260 5.00$              $          1,300.00 460

 $            200.00 
2518-6910000 Safety Closure 2 125.00$          $             250.00 2  $            250.00 
2515-6745600 Removal of Paved Driveway 16 12.50$            $             200.00 16

 $                    -   
2515-2475095 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 9.5 In. 63.50$            $                     -    $                    -   
2515-2475008 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 8 In. 52.50$            $                     -   

 $            300.00 
2515-2475006 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 202 44.50$            $          8,989.00 242.5  $       10,791.25 
2511-7528101 Detectable Warnings 10 30.00$            $             300.00 10

Item Code Description
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

Quantity 
Completed

Value 
Completed

V&K Job No. 368266 4 of 7



Unit
96 CY
97 CY
98 CY
99 CY

100 CY
101 SY
102 SY
103 Ton
104 Ea.
105 Ea.
106 Ea.
107 Ea.
108 Ea.
109 Ea.
110 LF
111 Ea.
112

LF
113

LF
114

LF
115 SY
116 Ea.
117 SY
118 SY
119 SY
120 SF
121 Ea.
122 LS
123 LS
124 LS
125 Ea.
126 LF
127 Ea.
128 Acre
129 Acre
130 Acre
131

Mgal
132 Ea.
133 LF
134

LF
135

LF
136 LF
137 Ea.
138 Ea.

Division III Price: 144,525.30$    139,181.03$   

 $            500.00 
2602-0010020 Mobilizations, Emergency Erosion Contr 1 1,000.00$       $          1,000.00  $                    -   
2602-0010010 Mobilizations, Erosion Control 1 500.00$          $             500.00 1

 $            560.00 

2602-0000500 Open-Throat Curb Intake Sediment Filter 20 25.00$            $             500.00 20  $            500.00 

2602-0000309 Perimeter and Slope Sediment Control 
Device, 9 In. Dia. 40 14.00$            $             560.00 40

 $                    -   
2602-0000101 Maintenance of Silt Fence or Silt Fence 

for Ditch Check 120 1.00$              $             120.00  $                    -   

2602-0000020 Silt Fence 120 5.00$              $             600.00 

 $                    -   

2601-2643300 Mobilization for Watering 4 350.00$          $          1,400.00  $                    -   

2601-2643110 Watering for Sod, Special Ditch 
Control, or Slope Protection 0.03 60.00$            $                 1.80 

 $            600.00 
2601-2642120 Stabil Crop-Seeding & Fertilizing (Urban 0.20 2,000.00$       $             400.00 0.2  $            400.00 
2601-2636044 Seeding and Fertilizing (Urban) 0.20 3,000.00$       $             600.00 0.2

 $         1,250.00 
2601-2634100 Mulching 0.20 3,000.00$       $             600.00 0.2  $            600.00 
2599-9999005 Removal of Hydrant Assembly 1 1,250.00$       $          1,250.00 1

 $            725.00 
2554-0112024 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 24 In. 20 150.00$          $          3,000.00 20  $         3,000.00 
2549-0006320 Urethane Chimney Seal 1 725.00$          $             725.00 1

 $            500.00 
2533-4980005 Mobilization 1 5,000.00$       $          5,000.00 1  $         5,000.00 
2528-8445110 Traffic Control 1 500.00$          $             500.00 1

 $            375.00 
2526-8285000 Construction Survey 1 7,000.00$       $          7,000.00 1  $         7,000.00 
2518-6910000 Safety Closure 3 125.00$          $             375.00 3

 $            920.00 
2511-7528101 Detectable Warnings 40 30.00$            $          1,200.00 40  $         1,200.00 
2511-7526006 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 6 In. 20 46.00$            $             920.00 20

 $            540.00 
2511-7526004 Sidewalk, P.C. Concrete, 4 In. 158 36.75$            $          5,806.50 158  $         5,806.50 
2511-6745900 Removal of Sidewalk 72 7.50$              $             540.00 72

 $         1,102.50 
2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses 2 350.00$          $             700.00 2  $            700.00 
2510-6745850 Removal of Pavement 105 10.50$            $          1,102.50 105

 $         2,677.50 
2503-0200036 Remove Storm Sewer Pipe Less Than or 

Equal to 36 In. 115 10.00$            $          1,150.00 144  $         1,440.00 

2503-0114218 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 
RCP, 2000D (Class III), 18 In. 31 52.50$            $          1,627.50 51

 $            150.00 
2503-0114212 Storm Sewer Gravity Main, Trenched, 

RCP, 2000D (Class III), 12 In. 111 50.00$            $          5,550.00 142  $         7,100.00 

2502-8221303 Subdrain Outlet, DR-303 6 75.00$            $             450.00 2

 $         4,400.00 
2502-8212036 Subdrain, Longitudinal, (Shoulder) 6 In. 499 15.00$            $          7,485.00 499  $         7,485.00 
2435-0251100 Intake, SW-511 2 2,200.00$       $          4,400.00 2

 $                    -   
2435-0250400 Intake, SW-504 1 5,750.00$       $          5,750.00 1  $         5,750.00 
2435-0250100 Intake, SW-501 1 2,500.00$       $          2,500.00 0

 $                    -   
2435-0140148 Manhole, St Sewer, SW-401, 48 In. 1 2,750.00$       $          2,750.00 1  $         2,750.00 
2435-0130348 Manhole, San Sewer, SW-303, 48 In. 1 7,500.00$       $          7,500.00 

 $       16,562.98 
2416-0100012 Aprons, Concrete, 12 In. Dia. 2 1,050.00$       $          2,100.00 2  $         2,100.00 
2303-0000100 HMA Mixture, Com Mix (Binder) per pla 120 126.30$          $        15,156.00 131.14

 $            202.50 
2301-1033070 Standard or Slip Form PCC Pvm't, Cl C, 

Cl 3 D bilit  7"
847 38.50$            $        32,609.50 870.8  $       33,525.80 

2214-5145150 Pavement Scarification 810 0.25$              $             202.50 810

 $         2,772.00 
2115-0100000 Modified Subbase 170 38.25$            $          6,502.50 263  $       10,059.75 
2105-8425005 Topsoil, Furnish and Spread 90 38.50$            $          3,465.00 72

 $         9,346.75 
2102-2713090 Excavation, Cl 13, Waste 143 8.25$              $          1,179.75 143  $         1,179.75 
2102-2710090 Excavation, Cl 10, Waste 763 12.25$            $          9,346.75 763

Value 
Completed

2102-2710070 Excavation, Cl 10, Roadway & Borrow 50 8.00$              $             400.00 50  $            400.00 
Item Code Description

Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

Quantity 
Completed

BID ITEMS - DIVISION III

V&K Job No. 368266 5 of 7



Unit
27 Ea.

105 Ea.

116 Ea.

8001 Ea.

8002 Ea.

8003 LF

8004 Ea.

8005 Ea.

8006 CY

8007 CY

8008 SY

8009 Ea.

8010 Ea.

8011 Ea.

8015 Ea.

8016 LF

8017 Ea.

8018 LF

8019 Ea.

8021 SY

52 SY

25 Ea.

45 Ea.

8001 Ea.

8005 Ea.

8006 CY

8007 CY

8012 LF

8013 CY

8014 Ea.

8020 Ea.

8022 SY

Total Change Orders: 70,499.93$      98,977.42$     

 $         2,200.00 

6100-2301010 PCC Cold Weather Protection 977.5 1.00$              $             977.50 977.5  $            977.50 

2435-0251100 Intake, SW-511 1 2,200.00$       $          2,200.00 1

 $         4,519.23 

2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes &Utility Accesses 2 1,210.00$       $          2,420.00 2  $         2,420.00 

2599-9999003 Excavation & Backfill w/Native Material 97 46.59$            $          4,519.23 97

 $         1,354.50 

2504-0240036 Remove San Sewer Pipe ≤ 36" 45 62.76$            $          2,837.38 45.21  $         2,837.38 

2102-2710070 Excavation & Backfill w/Native Material 153 21.00$            $          3,213.00 64.5

 $         3,621.20 

2552-0000220 Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Mat' 50 26.51$            $          1,316.75 99.33  $         2,633.24 

2504-0220000 San Swr Service Relocation 2 1,810.60$       $          3,621.20 2

 - 

2435-0600020 Manhole Adjustment 2 5,280.00$       $        10,560.00 2  $       10,560.00 

2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses -2 425.00$          $            (850.00) -

 $       10,858.50 

PARTICIPATING CHANGE ORDER ITEMS
2435-0130348 Manhole, San Sewer, SW-303, 48 In. -2 7,250.00$       $       (14,500.00) -  - 

2515-2475095 Driveway, P.C. Concrete, 9.5 In. 171 63.50$            $        10,858.50 171

 $         2,475.00 

2515-6745600 Removal of Paved Driveway 171.5 31.35$            $          5,376.53 171.5  $         5,376.53 

2599-9999007 Air Release Assembly 1 2,475.00$       $          2,475.00 1

600.00$             

2554-0205120 Water Service Stub 34 177.97$          $          6,050.98 34  $         6,050.98 

2435-0700020 Connect to Existing Intake 1 600.00$         600.00$              1

350.00$             

2503-0110008 Stm Swr GMain, Trch, PVC, C900 8" 40 36.85$           1,474.00$           40 1,474.00$          

2599-9999006 Nylo-Plast 8" Drop-In Grate 1 350.00$         350.00$              1

 $         3,520.00 

2599-9999005 SW-511 Intake Modifications 2 1,925.00$       $          3,850.00 2  $         3,850.00 

2554-0202200 Fittings by Count, DI, 45 Bend, 12" 4 880.00$          $          3,520.00 4

 $         4,950.00 

2435-0250300 Intake, SW-503 2 2,500.00$       $          5,000.00 2  $         5,000.00 

2113-0001100 Subgrade Stabil Mat'l Geogrid TX160 705 6.60$              $          4,653.00 750

 $         2,633.24 

2102-2710070 Excavation Class 10 Roadway & Borrow 188 21.00$            $          3,954.93 188.33  $         3,954.93 

2552-0000220 Replacement of Unsuitable Backfill Mat' 99 26.51$            $          2,633.24 99.33

 $            600.00 

2504-0220000 San Swr Service Relocation 2 1,810.60$       $          3,621.20 2  $         3,621.20 

2599-9999005 Valve Removal 1 600.00$          $             600.00 1

 $         1,017.50 

2554-0112012 Water Main, Trenched, DIP, 12" 52 110.00$          $          5,720.00 56.75  $         6,242.50 

2554-0202200 Fittings by Count DI, Sleeve 12" 1 1,017.50$       $          1,017.50 1

 - 

2435-0600020 Manhole Adjustment 1 5,280.00$       $          5,280.00 1  $         5,280.00 

2510-6750600 Removal of Intakes and Utility Accesses -1 350.00$          $            (350.00) -

 - 

2435-0130348 Manhole, San Sewer, SW-303, 48 In. -1 7,500.00$       $         (7,500.00) -  - 

2435-0250100 Intake, SW-501 -2 2,500.00$       $         (5,000.00) -

Total -$                      

NON PARTICIPATING CHANGE ORDER ITEMS

Item Code Description
Estimated 
Quantity Unit Price Extended Price

Quantity 
Completed

Value 
Completed

MATERIALS STORED SUMMARY
Description # of Units Unit Price Extended Cost

V&K Job No. 368266 6 of 7



100%

The amount is recommended for approval for payment in accordance with the terms of the contract.

Prepared By: Recommended By: Approved By:

Taylor Construction, Inc. Veenstra & Kimm, Inc. West Branch, Iowa

Leland Belding

Engineer

105,583.06$           

360,690.11$           

Pay Estimate No. 4 214,637.12$           

Pay Estimate No. 5 154,055.39$           

Title: Title: Title:

Date: Date: April 14, 2020 Date:

Signature: Signature: Signature:

Name: Name: Name:

Total Previously Approved 1,738,139.07$      

Percent Complete Amount Due This Request 4,866.49$             

4,866.49$           

Total Earned Less Retainage 1,743,005.56$      
Total Previously Approved (list each) Pay Estimate No. 1 361,163.95$           

Pay Estimate No. 2 248,327.73$           

Pay Estimate No. 3

Stored -$                      

Total Earned 1,773,005.56$      

Retainage (3%) 30,000.00$           

Change Order No. 7

Revised Contract Price 1,736,525.03$        1,773,005.56$      

Pay Estimate No. 8 60,598.60$             

Pay Estimate No. 9 18,703.02$             

Pay Estimate No. 6 214,380.09$           

Pay Estimate No. 7

Change Order No. 5

Change Order No. 6

Change Order No. 3

Change Order No. 4

Contract Price 1,666,025.10$        1,674,028.14$      
Approved Change Order (list each) Change Order No. 1

Change Order No. 2

SUMMARY
Total Approved Total Completed

V&K Job No. 368266 7 of 7



 

 

 
 

                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Motion to Approve the Claims Report. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon Edgar, Finance Director 

DATE:  April 15, 2020  

     

BACKGROUND:  

These are routine expenditures that include such items as payroll, budget expenditures, and other 

financial items that relate to City Council approved items and/or other day to day operational 

disclosures. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Claims Report – Move to Action 

 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Consent Item 3 















FUND MARCH

001  GENERAL FUND 171,969.79  

022  CIVIC CENTER 2,579.16       

031  LIBRARY 288.92          

036  TORT LIABILITY 5,865.19       

110  ROAD USE TAX 11,770.25    

112  TRUST & AGENCY 33,451.61    

119  EMERGENCY TAX FUND 4,708.75       

121  LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 15,823.18    

125  TIF 58,536.95    

226  DEBT SERVICE 43,385.84    

500  CEMETERY PERPETUAL FUND 587.15          

501  KROUTH PRINCIPAL FUND 229.21

502  KROUTH INTEREST FUND 61.40            

600  WATER FUND 47,150.63    

610  SEWER FUND 47,038.59    

740  STORM WATER UTILITY 5,087.88       

TOTAL 448,534.50  

 REVENUE-FISCAL YEAR 2020



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Third (Final) Reading of Ordinance 775 Adding, Chapter 78 of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa; Entitled, “Golf Carts”. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Mike Horihan, Police Chief 

DATE:  March 11, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: 

  

The purpose of this item is to address issues related to safety and well-being of the citizens of the 

City of West Branch by prohibiting the unsafe use of golf carts on the public roads in the city.  We 

have received several complaints regarding the use of Golf Carts.  Particularly regarding operations 

by under aged children which may endanger the safety of persons driving, bicycling or walking on 

the roads or the safety of motorists, cyclists, pedestrians, or other children passengers on the Golf 

Cart.  This item was brought to the City’s attention by a citizen driven proposal, it was refined by city 

staff (primarily the police department) and presented with this first reading of a new code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Third Reading of Ordinance 775 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 1 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

ORDINANCE 775 

 

ORDINANCE 775 ESTABLISHING A NEW CHAPTER 78 OF THE CODE OF 

ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA; ENTITLED “GOLF 

CARTS”. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council has recommended establishing a City of West Branch Policy 

for reasons of safety and well-being of the citizens; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the operations of a Golf Cart by under aged children could endanger the 

safety of persons driving, bicycling or walking on the roads or the safety of motorists, cyclists, 

pedestrians, or other children passengers on the Golf Cart; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this is a practice as well as other risky or prohibited behaviors that involve 

the golf cart operations are addressed within this ordinance; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 

 

1. Establishing. Chapter 78 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, Iowa, is 

hereby developed and incorporated into this Ordinance by this reference. 

 

2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 

 

4. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval 

and publication as required by law. 

 

 

First reading:  March 16, 2020 

Second reading: April 6, 2020 

Third Reading: April 20, 2020 

 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Second Reading of Ordinance 774 Amending Chapters 45 entitled “Alcohol 

Consumption and Intoxication”; and Chapter 47 entitled “Municipal Park 

Policies and Regulations.” 

CITY GOAL: Promote quality of life including public safety, community pride events, 

strong citizen involvement, parks and recreation opportunities and 

investment. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  February 26, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 
The Park & Recreation Commission recommends and reviews policies, rules, regulations, 

ordinances and budgets relating to parks and playgrounds of the City. The Parks and Recreation 

Commission has evaluated the current ordinances in regard to alcohol use in Beranek Park, Cubby 

Park, Wapsi Park, Heritage Square, Town Hall and Lions Field.  As a result of their review the 

recommendation was to allow the consumption of alcohol during park operation hours at certain 

parks.   
 

After City Council discussion, Staff review from the police department, parks department, and the 

City Attorney, the attached Ordinance amendments are recommended. The amendments in 

chapters of 45 and 47 reflect a special permit approach to allowing alcohol consumption in all 

parks.  In other words, the Council would like the staff to consider requiring no alcohol 

consumption unless a special permit is approved.  Special permit request would be approved at the 

staff level, but can be appealed and/or overturned by the city council. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Second Reading – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 2 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

   

(2) Public Parks when a special permit is granted by a city official; 



 

 

 

Chapter 47 



 

 

 

Chapter 47 



 

 

 
 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE 774 

 

ORDINANCE 774 AMENDING CHAPTERS 45 ENTITLED “ALCOHOL 

CONSUMPTION AND INTOXICATION”; AND CHAPTER 47 ENTITLED “MUNICIPAL 

PARK POLICIES AND REGULATIONS. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Commission has recommended to the City Council 

updating the City’s Policy for consumption of alcohol in public parks; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City Administrator and city staff have reviewed these recommendations 

and have met to discuss with the City Council and devised changes to the code of ordinances that 

will allow consumption in municipal parks (as recommended by the Parks and Recreation 

Commission) with approval of a special event with a beer and wine provision and/or use permit; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, beverages consider to be hard liquors are not permitted in parks with no 

exceptions; and  

 

 WHEREAS, intoxication is not permitted in parks with no exceptions; and 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED: 
 
1. Amendment. Chapter 45 and 47 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, is hereby amended and incorporated into this Ordinance by this reference. 
 
2. Conflicts.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances not specifically provided for and in 

conflict with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 
3. Adjudication.  If any section, provision or part of this ordinance shall be adjudged to be 

invalid or unconstitutional, such adjudication shall not affect the validity of the ordinance as a 

whole or any section, provision or part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional. 
 
4. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its passage, approval 

and publication as required by law. 

 

First reading:  April 6, 2020 

Second reading: April 20, 2020 

Third Reading: May 4, 2020 

 

      _____________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1890 – Amending Resolutions 1880 and 1724, “An Agreement 

with Barnhart’s Custom Services LLC for Site Preparation to Include 

Additional Invoicing Not To Exceed $54,000.00 for related services. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  April 15, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND: The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement company 

with more than 130 locations in six states, and employs its own crew that not only pours foundations 

and walls but constructs plants.  Croell Redi-mix operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East Green 

Street which is ranged north to south between Main Street and College Street.  While planning for a 

plant expansion at that site, the city proposed a land swap.  Instead of having this industrial use 

expand its operations in this transitional area that exist between a celebrated historic downtown with 

14 buildings on the National Historic Register, and a well-established neighborhood known for its 

mature tree line and eclectic housing; the city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of 

industrial park property for the aforementioned 4 acre site.  
  

Original Budget $400,000.00  
The Land Swap $250,000 (asset yet to sale @ in the Industrial Park $80,000) 

Site Preparation (Subgrade Deconstruction) $49,663.75 paid to date. 

Site grading $39,298.88 paid to date. 

$54,000 yet to be paid 

 

Remaining Balance $7,037.37 

Income yet to be realized 
Grants $25,000 - $50,000 

Land sales $75,000 - $161,000 

Aggregate sales $30,000.00 (cover cost) 

 

Potential Amount Recovered $166,037 - $248,037 (est. 62% recaptured of original budget) 
 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1890 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 3 



 

 

 



 

 

 

Existing Resolution(s) 

and Agreement 



 

 

 

Existing Resolution(s) 

and Agreement 



 

 

 

 

Existing Agreement 



 

 

 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

  

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

  

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

  

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Existing Resolution and Agreement 



 

 

 

Work Paid – Subgrade Deconstruction 



 

 

 
 

Work paid – Subgrade Deconstruction 



 

 

 

Work paid – Subgrade Deconstruction 



 

 

 
 

 

Work paid – Above grade Deconstruction 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1890 

 

AMENDING RESOLUTION 1880 AND 1724 “AN AGREEMENT WITH BARNHART’S 

CUSTOM SERVICES LLC” FOR SITE PREPARATION TO INCLUDE ADDITIONAL 

INVOICING NOT TO EXCEED $54,000.00 FOR RELATED SERVICES.  

 

WHEREAS, The property was purchased in 1989 by Croell Redi-mix, a cement company 

operated on a four-acre parcel at 325 East Green Street and while planning for a plant expansion at 

that site, the city proposed a land swap.; and 
 

WHEREAS, Instead of having this industrial use expand its operations in this transitional 

area that exist between a celebrated historic downtown with 14 buildings on the National Historic 

Register, and a well-established neighborhood known for its mature tree line and eclectic housing; 

the city pursued a land swap that exchanged 12 acres of industrial park property for the 

aforementioned 4 acre site; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of West Branch, Authorized the City Administrator to enter 

into an agreement with amendments that totals to date $88,962.63 with Barnhart’s Custom 

Services, LLC for the services of site preparation for the site previously known as the Croell Redi-

mix property; 
 

WHEREAS, Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC. is a local business with experience in 

removing concrete, excavation, and site clean-up encountered greater subgrade materials than 

originally anticipated including old rail road infrastructure; and,  
 

WHEREAS, Barnhart’s Custom Services, LLC has provided an additional amendment to 

his contract to the City for services to recycle concrete; which is intended not to exceed $54,000; 

and  
 
WHEREAS, this agreement also includes an anticipated purchase of concrete from the 

City of West Branch for $3.75 per ton with at least 8000 tons estimated on the site (an estimate of 

$30,000 to be paid to the city).  This agreement also includes an obligation of Barnhart’s Custom 

Services, to have verifiable weight tickets; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of West Branch, that the 

City Administrator is authorized to pay the requested invoicing from Barnhart’s Custom Services, 

LLC in the amount not to exceed $54,000.00 for concrete recycle services related to preparation 

for the site previously known as the Croell Redi-mix property. 

 

Passed and approved this 20th day of April, 2020. 

 

 

      ______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator / City Clerk 
 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1888 – Resolution establishing a new capital fund to pay for a 

new capital project related to widening I-80. 

CITY GOAL: Establish a sound and sustainable government supported by professionalism, 

progressive thinking and modernizing the organization. 

PREPARED BY: Gordon R. Edgar, Finance Officer 

DATE:  April 15, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 
The City of West Branch has to pay for a project to relocate a water main on the west side of West 

Branch.  This is related to the widening of I-80.  The City of West Branch will be reimbursed by 

the Iowa Department of Transportation but will have to file reimbursement requests.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1888 / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 4 



 

 

 

 RESOLUTION 1888 

 

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A NEW FUND 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa is planning to complete 

capital projects and funds for these capital projects must be established.  

 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, as follows: 

 

Section 1. A capital project fund for the I-80 West, Water Main Relocation Project 

(Fund 323) is hereby created. 

 

Section 2.  All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict with the provisions of this 

resolution are hereby repealed. 

 

 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED, this 20th day of April, 2020. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Gordon R. Edgar, Deputy City Clerk    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Discussion Item: Consider Discontinuing Our “2019-2020 High Priority 

Goal” to Install Asphalt Shoulder on West Main Street (Due to the School 

District Construction Plans). 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Redmond Jones, City Administrator 

DATE:  April 15, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

“2019 – 2020 Goal Setting Exercise” 

TOP  

 Downstream Widening (24) 

 Cubby Park – Additional Operation Resources (12) 

 Downtown Sidewalks – Phase 5 (11) 

 East Side Water Main Investment (11)  

 Creek Maintenance (11)  
 
HIGH 

 Police Department Squad Car (8)  

 Asphalt Shoulder on West Main Street (7) ??? 

 Police Department Reporting Software (7) 

 North Maple Street – Curb and Gutter (7)  

 Planning Alternative Wastewater and Wetland Research 

Park (6) 

 2020 1-ton Dump Box and Snow Plow (6) 
 
MODERATE 

 Spring and Fall Cleanup Days (5)     

 Renew Building Incentive Program (5)  

Non Consent Item 5 



 

 

 Orange Street between 4th and 5th (5)    

 Greenview Connection (4)  

 Washing North Water Tower (4)     

 Trees Forever Grant Project (4)  

 Splash Pad Funding / Contribution to the Fund(3)   

 Beranek Park Parking Lot Improvements (2)  

 Additional Town Hall Improvements (2)    

 Wayfinding Signage for the Industrial Park (1) 

 Overlay One Alley (1)     

 Christmas Past – Carriage Rides Funding (1)  

 CDG Funding and Coordinating / Festivals (1)   

 Music on the Green Funding (1)  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Seeking Feedback / Direction  
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 
     



 

 

  
 
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1891 – Resolution Approving the Site Plan for Cedar’s Edge Golf 

Course Club House, 3 Ember Lane, West Branch, IA. 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax results. 

PREPARED BY: Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

DATE:  April 15, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

Jerry Sexton, owner of Cedar’s Edge Golf Course would like to reconstruct a club house on the golf 

course that was demolished two years ago.  Sexton has submitted a building permit for the new 

building but by Code, required to submit a Site Plan for the project. 

 

The proposed site plan for the property has been reviewed by staff, City Engineer, Zoning 

Administrator and the Planning & Zoning Commission.  

 

The Planning & Zoning Commission approved this Site Plan on April 14, 2020 at a special 

Planning & Zoning Commission meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1891 / Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 6 



SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

DR
AW

IN
G 

LO
G

EN
GI

N
EE

R:

  6
0 

EA
ST

 C
O

U
RT

 S
TR

EE
T,

 U
N

IT
 3

, I
O

W
A 

CI
TY

, I
A 

52
24

0

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 O
F 

CH
AN

GE
S

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E:

CL
IE

N
T 

N
AM

E:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
0.

:
DA

TE
 IS

SU
ED

:
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

CU
RR

EN
T 

RE
V:

 Apr 08, 2020 - 4:37pm S:\PROJECTS\180013\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Sheets\Clubhouse Ph 6\180013-Ph_6 - C0.00.dwg

18
-0

01
3

C0
.0

0
BO

EL
K

SE
XT

O
N

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

CO
VE

R 
SH

EE
T

AP
RI

L 
8,

 2
02

0

CE
DA

RS
 E

DG
E 

CL
U

B 
HO

U
SE

W
ES

T 
BR

AN
CH

CI
TY

 R
EV

IE
W

SCOPE OF WORK:
CONSTRUCTION OF A CLUB HOUSE TO REPLACE
THE PREVIOUSLY DEMOLISHED CLUB HOUSE.
CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW  CLUB HOUSE
BUILDING AND ASSOCIATED PAVING AND
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS.

CONTACT PERSON:

MICHAEL WELCH
AXIOM CONSULTANTS, LLC
60 E COURT STREET, UNIT 3
IOWA CITY, IOWA 52240-3833
PHONE: 319-519-6220
mwelch@axiom-con.com

DRAWINGS FOR PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS
CLUBHOUSE
LOT 27 - CEDARS EDGE
WEST BRANCH, IOWA

CITY OF WEST BRANCH, IOWA

UTILITY CONTACTS

PROJECT INFORMATION
THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS INCLUDED IN THESE DRAWINGS HAVE BEEN DESIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY OF WEST
BRANCH REQUIREMENTS AND THE IOWA STATEWIDE URBAN DESIGN AND SPECIFICATIONS (SUDAS), LATEST ADDITION, UNLESS
NOTED OTHERWISE ON THE PLANS.

THE FOLLOWING DESIGN EXCEPTIONS ARE REQUIRED:

NONE

THE FOLLOWING SUDAS FIGURES ARE INCLUDED BY REFERENCE:

FIGURE TITLE
3010.101           TRENCH BEDDING AND BACKFILL ZONES
3010.103           FLEXIBLE GRAVITY PIPE TRENCH BEDDING
4010.201           SANITARY SEWER SERVICE STUB
4040.231      SUBDRAINS
4040.233      SUBDRAIN OUTLETS
5010.101      THRUST BLOCKS
5010.102      TRACER SYSTEM
5010.901      MINIMUM CLEARANCE BETWEEN WATER SERVICE AND STRUCTURE
5020.201      FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY
6010.301           CIRCULAR SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE
6010.401      CIRCULAR STORM SEWER MANHOLE
6010.508      SINGLE OPEN-THROAT CURB INTAKE, LARGE BOX
6010.601           CASTINGS FOR SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES
6010.602      CASTINGS FOR STORM SEWER MANHOLES
9040.102           FILTER BERM AND FILTER SOCK
9040.104           ROLLED EROSION CONTROL INSTALLATION - CHANNEL
9040.119           SILT FENCE
9040.120           STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE

APPLICANT INFORMATION
DEVELOPER:

SEXTON CONSTRUCTION
192 HILLTOP CIRCLE
WEST BRANCH, IA 52358

PROPERTY OWNER:

SEXTON CONSTRUCTION
192 HILLTOP CIRCLE
WEST BRANCH, IA 52358

DEVELOPER'S ATTORNEY:

TBD

PROJECT
LOCATION

DESIGN STANDARDS AND REFERENCE DRAWINGS

ALLIANT ENERGY
LAURA BARR
(319) 286-1315

LINN COUNTY REC
JOHNA NUNEMAKER
(319) 377-1587
NUNEMAKER@LINNCOUNTYREC.COM

IOWA COMMUNICATIONS NETWORK (ICN)
SHANNON MARLOW
 (515) 725-4402
SHANNON.MARLOW@IOWA.GOV

CITY OF WEST BRANCH
MATT GOODALE
(319) 643-5888
WBCITY@NETINS.NET

CIVIL
COVER SHEETC0.00

LEGEND AND GENERAL NOTES

OVERALL SITE PLANC2.00

LANDSCAPE AND OPEN SPACE
OWNER REQUESTS A WAIVER FROM THE CITY OF WEST BRANCH LANDSCAPE AND OPEN SPACE REQUIREMENTS
BASED ON THE NATURE OF THE PROPERTY AND THE NUMBER OF EXISTING TREES AND AMOUNT OF OPEN
SPACE ALREADY PRESENT ON SITE. DEVELOPER TO LANDSCAPE SITE SPECIFICALLY FOR EVENT CENTER USE AND
OUTDOOR PHOTOGRAPHY.

SITE INFORMATION

80

p no Creek
aW is n co

19636
WELCH

MICHAEL J.

LI
CE

NS
ED

PROFESS IONAL
ENG

INEER

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS ENGINEERING DOCUMENT WAS PREPARED BY ME OR UNDER MY DIRECT
PERSONAL SUPERVISION AND THAT I AM A DULY LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER UNDER THE LAWS OF
THE STATE OF IOWA.

MICHAEL J. WELCH, P.E. DATE
LICENSE NUMBER 19636.

MY LICENSE RENEWAL DATE IS DECEMBER 31, 2020.

PAGES OR SHEETS COVERED BY THIS SEAL: ALL
I

O

W

A

          Exhibit A

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LN

AutoCAD SHX Text
5TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6TH

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WEST BRANCH CORPORATE LIMITS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHNSON  COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 4TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BICKFORD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
350TH ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREENVIEW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CIR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCOTT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLIPHANT ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAGERT DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
THOMAS ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOSTER ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLIPHANT ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
POPLAR ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTHRIDGE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEMON  

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORANGE   ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLEGE   ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANCASTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLEGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN   ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER   ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNEY  ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND

AutoCAD SHX Text
4TH      ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKSIDE DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
( WEST BRANCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORPORATE LIMITS )

AutoCAD SHX Text
( WEST BRANCH CORP.  LIMITS )

AutoCAD SHX Text
HILLTOP DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEDERSEN ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GILBERT DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN VIEW  DR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
1ST 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COOKSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR  COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
( WEST BRANCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORPORATE LIMITS )

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRESTVIEW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEDAR / JOHNSON CO LINE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

mwelch
Text Box
04/08/2020



W W W W W

ST ST ST

SD SD SD SD SD

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

SS

SS

ST

ST

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

W

ST

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD
SD

SD

CO

ST ST

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

SS

E
E

E

N
01

° 0
2'

 2
0"

W
   

  1
,0

98
.5

3'

141'

60
'

18
1'

674'

26
2.44 AC

106,345 SF

FF 781.92

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST
ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

ST

W W W W W W W W W

W

W

W

W

W

765

770

775

780

7667677
68769

771
772

773
774

77677
7

77
8779

781

782

783

775780

774

776777778779781782

783

784

0 10 20

SH
EE

T 
N

U
M

BE
R:

SH
EE

T 
N

AM
E:

DR
AW

IN
G 

LO
G

EN
GI

N
EE

R:

RE
V

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

 O
F 

CH
AN

GE
S

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
AM

E:

CL
IE

N
T 

N
AM

E:

IS
SU

ED
 F

O
R:

PR
O

JE
CT

 N
O

.:
DA

TE
 IS

SU
ED

:
PR

O
JE

CT
 M

AN
AG

ER
:

CU
RR

EN
T 

RE
V:

W
W

W
.A

XI
O

M
-C

O
N

.C
O

M
 |

 (3
19

) 5
19

-6
22

0

 Apr 08, 2020 - 4:43pm S:\PROJECTS\180013\05 Design\Civil-Survey\Sheets\Clubhouse Ph 6\180013-Ph_6 - C2.00.dwg

18
-0

01
3

C2
.0

0
BO

EL
K

SE
XT

O
N

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

SI
TE

 A
N

D 
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

AP
RI

L 
8,

 2
02

0

CE
DA

RS
 E

DG
E 

CL
U

B 
HO

U
SE

W
ES

T 
BR

AN
CH

CI
TY

 R
EV

IE
W

PROPOSED
CLUB HOUSE
FFE 785.50

LL FFE 773.50

HOLE #1
TEE

EMBER LANE

A

SITE PLAN KEYNOTES:

ACCESSIBLE STALL WITH SIGN - VAN ACCESSIBLE SPACE

MAIN LEVEL DECK - REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

CLUBHOUSE ENTRANCE - MAIN LEVEL
MAINTAIN ADA COMPLIANT CONDITIONS

PROPOSED CONCRETE WALK

PROPOSED ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER.  COORDINATE SIZE AND FINAL LOCATION
WITH MEP PLANS AND UTILITY COMPANY

DOWNSPOUT LOCATION. COORDINATE SIZE AND FINAL LOCATION WITH
ARCHITECTURAL PLANS.

SITE RUNOFF TO BE DIRECTED TO STORM WATER BASIN PERMITTED AND
CONSTRUCTED AS PART OF CEDARS EDGE DEVELOPMENT

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION (FDC).  REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS

HYDRANT MUST BE WITHIN 100' OF FDC.

TRASH COLLECTION FACILITIES TO BE SHARED WITH ADJACENT PROPERTY AND
LOCATED AT SW CORNER OF ADJACENT PARKING LOT

B

C

D

E

F

CONNECT TO
EXISTING SANITARY
LINE

EXISTING
FIRE HYDRANT

CONNECT TO
EXISTING WATER

SERVICE STUB

A

A

B

B

CD

D

D

D

D

D
F

F

F

F

F

F

STORM SEWER TO
DISCHARGE INTO EXISTING
REVETMENT STONE

18
2 

LF
 O

F 
10

" S
TO

RM
 @

 7
.9

6%

PROPOSED AREA INTAKE
RIM 773.25
6" INV: 769.00 N
10" INV: 768.50 S

PROPOSED 110 LF OF 6" PVC
SANITARY SERVICE @ 1.00%

PR
OP

OS
ED

 2
32

 LF
 O

F

6"
 W

AT
ER

 S
ER

VI
CE

DOWNSPOUTS TO BE
PIPED TO AREA INTAKE
USING MIN. 6" SMOOTH
WALL PIPE AT 1.00%

G

G

G

CEDARS EDGE
STORMWATER BASIN

PROPERTY
LINE

H

H

I

I

J

J

INSTALL & MAINTAIN
PERIMETER  EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROOM'S HUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK



 

 

RESOLUTION 1891 

 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SITE PLAN FOR CEDAR’S EDGE GOLF COURSE 

CLUB HOUSE, 3 EMBER LANE, WEST BRANCH, IOWA  
 

 

WHEREAS,  Jerry Sexton (owner), has heretofore submitted a proposed Site Plan to 

reconstruct a golf course club house on the property at 3 Ember Lane, (formerly known as 19 

Greenview Lane), West Branch, Iowa (the “Project”); and 

 

WHEREAS, said Site Plan (See Exhibit A) has heretofore been reviewed by City Staff and 

the City Engineer; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Site Plan has been found to conform to West Branch Code of Ordinances; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission has reviewed the 

Site Plan and recommended its approval to the West Branch City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the Site Plan and agreed approval; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary for the City Council to approve said Site Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, be it resolved by the City Council of the City 

of West Branch, Cedar County, Iowa, that the aforementioned Site Plan Agreement for the Project 

be and the same are hereby accepted and approved. 

 

 
* * * * * * * * 

Passed and approved this 20th day of April, 2020. 

 

 

      

______________________________ 

      Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Leslie Brick, Deputy City Clerk 

 



 

 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1893 – Resolution approving that certain Easement Agreement 

with the Fobian Brothers in connection with the College Street Bridge 

Project. 

CITY GOAL: Develop, maintain and rebuild safe, clean, diverse, healthy, neighborhoods, 

including partnering with the school district. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  April 15, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  

 

This easement was requested as part of the DOT audit to correct a drainage issue that came up 

during the project which allowed water to enter the grain bins.   

 

As part of the project, the City installed some storm sewer improvements to ensure that the water 

would not enter the grain bins, and in exchange the Fobian Brothers granted an easement to the 

City for those improvements, that easement coming at no cost to the City.  

  

The easement can also be vacated by the City should the Fobian Brothers decide to redevelop the 

site or the grain bins are destroyed as the bins are a non-conforming use.  This easement satisfies 

the request by the DOT to allow us to close out the project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1893 / Move to Action  
 
REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 7 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION 1893 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THAT CERTAIN EASEMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE 

FOBIAN BROTHERS IN CONNECTION WITH THE COLLEGE STREET BRIDGE 

PROJECT. 

 

WHEREAS, in accordance with a request from the Iowa Department of Transportation, 

the City Attorney and City Engineer negotiated an easement with Fobian Brothers, an Iowa general 

partnership, in connection with the College Street Bridge Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is now necessary to approve said easement agreement. 

        

 NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Resolved by the Council of the City of West Branch, Iowa, 

that the aforementioned easement agreement with the Fobian Brothers is hereby accepted and 

approved.  Further, the City Clerk is hereby directed to record a copy of said easement agreement 

in the Office of the Cedar County Recorder’s Office. 

Passed and approved this 20th day of April, 2020. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  
                 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 20, 2020 
 

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 1892 – A Resolution Approving the Preliminary Plat of Parkside 

Hills, West Branch, Iowa. . 

CITY GOAL: Develop inviting high profile visual impact projects; including gateways, 

establishing destination, branding and other projects that reflect tax 

results. 

PREPARED BY: Kevin Olson, City Attorney 

DATE:  April 20, 2020  
     
BACKGROUND:  
 

The property is located immediately east of 401 Parkside Drive (the BP Station). The 
applicant’s intention is to develop the property for: senior living, commercial, a pocket 
neighborhood portion, as well as multi-family housing and storage facilities for residents 
and the West Branch population. 
 
The property is surrounded by commercial on the west, residential on the north and 
agricultural on the west side. The east bound I-80 exit ramp is its southern border.  Access 
to the site will be off of S. 2nd Street and immediately north of the existing BP station. 
 
The developer is requesting approval of their preliminary plat with the understanding that 
a developer agreement will soon be brought forward, which will spell out the terms of a turn 
lane that will be done for this project. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 1892 – Move to Action 
 

REVIEWED BY CITY ADMINISTRATOR:   

COUNCIL ACTION:       

MOTION BY:      

SECOND BY:        

 

Non Consent Item 8 





RESOLUTION 1892 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PRELIMINARY PLAT OF PARKSIDE HILLS, WEST 

BRANCH, IOWA. 

 

 WHEREAS, the developer did file with the City Clerk of West Branch, a preliminary for 

Parkside Hills, West Branch, Iowa, which is legally described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and 

  

 WHEREAS, the aforementioned plat and subdivision is found to conform with Chapter 170 of 

the West Branch Code of Ordinances, and all other ordinances and statutory requirements; and 

  

 WHEREAS, said final platting of the aforementioned subdivision has been examined by the 

West Branch Planning and Zoning Commission; and  

 

 WHEREAS, recommendations from both said Commission and City Staff have been made; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after due deliberation, said Commission has recommended that the preliminary 

platting of the proposed subdivision, be accepted and approved. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of West Branch, 

Iowa, that the preliminary platting of Parkside Hills, West Branch, Iowa, be and the same is hereby 

approved, subject to the approval of a development agreement between the Developer and the City. 

 

 * * * * * * * 

 

Passed and approved this 20th day of April, 2020. 
 

 

 

       ___________________________________ 

       Roger Laughlin, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Redmond Jones II, City Administrator/Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Exibit “A” 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 


	368266_PE_10.pdf
	PE_10

	Council claims packet 4-20-20.pdf
	Council claims 4-20-20
	Council report 4-20-2020
	MAR 2020 REVENUE

	Res 1891_180013 - City Submittal Clubhouse Site Plan_04.08.2020 signed.pdf
	C0.00 COVER SHEET
	C2.00 SITE AND UTILITY PLAN




